
    
    
 

Town of Ashland 
Planning Commission Work Session 

Minutes 
February 13, 2013 – 6:00 p.m. 

 
The Planning Commission of the Town of Ashland, Virginia, held a work session on 
Wednesday, February 13, 2013, in the Town of Ashland Council Chambers located at 101 
Thompson Street, Ashland, Virginia.     
 

Present:    Alan Abbott, Chairman 
  Lou Ann Jewell, Vice-Chair 

  Bob Brown  
  Felix Stevens, III 
  Bob Flanagan (arrived at 6:20 p.m.) 

 
Absent: None 

 
Others Present: Nora Amos,  

Director of Planning and Community Development 
Bryant Phillips, Senior Planner 
Dr. Spagna, Council Liaison 
Nancy Quesenberry, Administrative Assistant 
Alexis Thompson, Economic Development Coordinator 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
 
The work session was called to order at 6:10 p.m. 
 
There was discussion regarding the future land use designation of the Holland Tract.  Options 
discussed included keeping it as currently shown in the Comprehensive Plan, industrial, mixed 
commercial, and the addition of institutional uses. 
 
The Planning Commissioners requested financial impact information on the various uses from 
staff. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no other items, the work session was adjourned at 6:55 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

T o w n   o f   A s h l a n d 



Planning Commission Minutes  
February 13, 2013 

2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Town of Ashland 
Planning Commission 

Minutes 
February 13, 2013 –7:00 p.m. 

 
A regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Town of Ashland, Virginia, was held on 
Wednesday, February 13, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. in the Town of Ashland Council Chambers, located 
at 101 Thompson Street, Ashland, Virginia.   

 
Present:    Alan Abbott, Chairman 
   Lou Ann Jewell, Vice-Chair 

  Bob Brown  
Bob Flanagan 
Felilx Stevens, III 
 

Absent: None. 
 
Others Present: Nora Amos,  

Director of Planning and Community Development 
Bryant Phillips, Senior Planner 
Dr. Spagna, Council Liaison 
Andrea Erard, Town Attorney 
Nancy Quesenberry, Administrative Assistant 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
 
Mr. Abbott called the regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Ms. Jewell  Here 
Mr. Flanagan  Here  
Mr. Brown  Here 
Mr. Stevens  Here 
Mr. Abbott  Here 
 
DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: 
 
Mr. Abbott stated that a quorum was present. 
 

T o w n   o f   A s h l a n d 



Planning Commission Minutes  
February 13, 2013 

3 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Mr. Abbott asked if there were any amendments to be made to the agenda.  
 
There being none, it was the consensus of the Planning Commission to adopt the agenda as 
presented. 
 
Ms. Jewell, Aye; Mr. Flanagan, Aye; Mr. Brown, Aye; Mr. Stevens, Aye; Mr. Abbott, Aye. 
 
CITIZEN INPUT: 
 
Mr. Abbott opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There being none, Mr. Abbott closed that portion of the meeting. 
 
PRESENTATION OF MINUTES: 
 

A. None 
 
PRESENTATION 
 

A. Ashland Main Street Association & Economic Development Update – Alexis 
Thompson 
 
Ms. Thompson stated that she recently provided the Town Council a brief update on the 
Economic Development activities for the Town of Ashland and wanted to provide the 
same update for the Planning Commission. 
 
Ms. Thompson stated that the Ashland Main Street Association (AMSA) organization is 
going through the State application process again with hopes of becoming an officially 
designated community.   
 
Ms. Thompson stated that in 2012, AMSA hired Tom Wulf as Executive Director, which 
was one of the requirements of the State program.  Mr. Wulf is working to establish 
offices in the downtown district and is working towards fundraising and making AMSA 
self sufficient.  Ms. Thompson stated that the State program would elevate the Town of 
Ashland to a regional level with approximately 26 other Main Street communities, in 
addition to raising exposure.  Becoming a part of the State program would assist AMSA 
in applying for grants. 
 
Ms. Thompson stated that she has been working with the Market Ashland Partnership 
organization.  One of the recent projects was a customer rewards card, which includes a 
cross rewards program and a loyalty program.  Ms. Thompson stated that a company 
came in with the tools and software for this program.  A lot of businesses signed up as 
interested and then after speaking with them one-on-one, the business owners stated that 
they did not want to have to learn a new software program, and they did not want to 

 

    



Planning Commission Minutes  
February 13, 2013 

4 
 

spend extra time managing a program, and that they would have preferred that the 
program be free. 
 
Ms. Thompson stated that the business owners seemed to be more comfortable with a 
simple cross promotional program, which is a community gift certificate program; any 
locally owned business could sign up to receive the gift checks, which will be provided 
by her at Town Hall, and the gift checks are cashed with the businesses daily deposits. 
There is no cost, no sign-up fees, and there is nothing to be learned.  Ms. Thompson 
stated that perhaps in the future when the businesses are comfortable with this process 
the customer rewards program cards would be phased in. 
 
Ms. Thompson stated that the technology and environmental sector is doing very well, 
and listed the following examples:  

• SpecOps – located near the GreenTech Incubator.  They recently signed a new 
lease and will be staying in Ashland for a while longer. 

• Smash Direct – one of the top eBay sellers in the world is located in Ashland. 
They have recently signed contracts with Best Buy and Amazon to sell used 
cameras for them. 

• Envirostruct – a new construction company.  
• Creative Conservation– owned by Thomas Sprouse 
• Home Energy Store – owned by Thomas Sprouse, selling rain barrels, 

composters, organic gardening supplies, etc.   
• GreenAir – has been expanded from their location on England Street to a location 

on U.S. Route 1. 
• Sonic Tools – has expanded and purchased a facility and they have invested 

largely in their machining tools. 
 

Ms. Thompson provided an update on the Economic Development Authority (EDA) 
stating that the EDA has contacted a group facilitator named Jamison Manion who is the 
author of a group dynamic textbook.  Mr. Manion specializes in economic development 
and works for the City of Richmond, Virginia, and also specializes in group dynamics. 
Mr. Manion will come to the Town of Ashland and facilitate a work session with the 
EDA and assist in developing a strategic plan on February 28, 2013. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. REZ13-0107 – Sumpter T. Priddy, Jr. Rezoning – Bryant Phillips 
 
Mr. Phillips reviewed the rezoning request as presented in the Planning Commission 
packet. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that the Applicant is proposing to rezone 3.578 acres of property on 
the south side of Thompson Street between Henry Clay Road and Wesley Street from R-
2 to B-1, which includes the location of an existing historic building that would be 
renovated and restored as a commercial use. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes  
February 13, 2013 

5 
 

Mr. Phillips stated that the Applicant is requesting to subdivide 14.99 acres of land on 
the south side of Thompson in two (2) lots ( SUB12-0921): 

• Lot 1 of the proposed subdivision is proposed to be rezoned; 
• Lot 2 of the proposed subdivision would be placed under a conservation 

easement and dedicated to the Town for use as park and open space. 
 

Mr. Phillips stated that no proffers or plan of development have been submitted with this 
request; however, site improvements for parking and traffic circulation are proposed. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that a traffic impact study would not be required for the Thompson 
Street traffic. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that staff has received concerns regarding the amount of traffic that 
currently exists on Thompson Street and the potential commercial use of this property.  
 
Mr. Phillips stated that the rezoning of this property would allow the vacant store to be 
renovated and re-established as a commercial use as it once was. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that hopefully a commercial use in this area would encourage 
pedestrian activity in the surrounding neighborhood and with traffic being a concern, 
staff is recommending that the Applicant provide crosswalks across Thompson Street as 
well as a pedestrian trail on the south side of Thompson Street.   
 
Mr. Phillips stated that with regards to the open space designation of the balance of the 
property, much of the open space property is wetlands and the Application has indicated 
that minimal disturbance of these wetlands is proposed and that he has proposed a 
pedestrian path, which would provide some recreational opportunities in the area.   
 
Mr. Phillips stated that staff believes that the request to rezone to B -1 is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan and Subdivision and Zoning Ordinances.  Staff understands that 
rezoning the parcel to B-1 is not the most ideal request; however, staff does believe that 
B-1 would be appropriate because many of the uses that are permitted within the B-1 
Zoning District should be compatible with the surrounding area and compliment many 
of the uses in the downtown Ashland area. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that staff is recommending approval of this request. 
 
Mr. Stevens asked what could be done with the property at this time without any 
changes to the zoning. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that the only thing that could be done with the property is what is 
permitted within the R-2 (Residential Limited) Zoning District which only allows 
residential uses, churches, home occupations, community centers, etc., with a 
Conditional Use Permit; no commercial uses would be permitted. 
 
Mr. Abbott asked if the Applicant would like to come forward to speak. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes  
February 13, 2013 

6 
 

Sumpter T. Priddy, Jr. - 118 Beverly Road, Ashland, Virginia. 
 
Mr. Priddy stated that he purchased this area of land in hopes of being able to clean it up 
so that it looks nice for the travelers along U.S. Route 54. 
 
Mr. Priddy stated that it was his goal to re-establish the ‘old building’ on that land under 
the umbrella of the Rehabilitation Act of Virginia that would provide some tax credit 
and provide a historical marker.   
 
Mr. Priddy provided some history of the ‘old building’. 
 
Ms. Jewell asked Mr. Priddy why it was his desire to rezone three (3) acres instead of 
just the property that the store is located on. 
 
Mr. Priddy stated that when he purchased the land he wanted to combine all of the small 
lots and create two (2) lots; one (1) lot would be 11 acres and given to the Town of 
Ashland and the other lot would have the building.  
 
Mr. Abbott asked if there was anyone from the public who would like to speak for or 
against the rezoning case being presented. 
 
Tayloe Moore – 500 Thompson Street, (the corner of Thompson Street and Chapman 
Street). 
 
Ms. Moore spoke in opposition of the rezoning stating that a future owner of the three 
and one-half (3 1/2) acre parcel could tear down the existing building and redevelop the 
land as they see fit, which could include a strip mall or a fast-food restaurant that could 
be open 24 hours a day in a residential development. 
 
Ms. Moore also spoke of concerns of the traffic on Thompson Street. 
 
Ms. Moore stated that it was very generous of Mr. Priddy to donate the wetlands to the 
Town to be used as a park. 
 
Pat Morris – 510 Henry Clay Road, (the corner of Henry Clay Road and U.S. Route 54, 
Thompson Street).  
 
Ms. Morris stated that she was grateful for Mr. Priddy’s offer of the wetland’s to the 
Town and that he would like to restore the ‘old building’ on the site and bring it up to  
code. 
 
Ms. Morris spoke in opposition of the rezoning stating the there was an unknown of 
what the future would hold for that property should it be sold. 
 
Ms. Morris stated that her bedroom window looks right over the parking lot of the parcel 
that the ‘old building’ is located on; therefore, she would like to request that there be a 



Planning Commission Minutes  
February 13, 2013 

7 
 

requirement for lighting to be down lighted and turned off in the evening to avoid lights 
glaring into her bedroom window. 
 
Ms. Morris stated that she has a concern of a crosswalk on Thompson Street without a 
light with the speed limit being 35 miles per hour. 
 
Ms. Morris stated that her biggest concerns are noise, the lighting and safety. 
 
 A.C. Bruce – 411 Henry Clay Road. 
 
Mr. Bruce stated that he was in favor of the restoration of the old store. 
 
Mr. Bruce spoke in opposition to the rezoning with concerns of the traffic and the speed 
or what the future might hold for the property. 
 
James Peterson – 103 Chapman Street. 
 
Mr. Peterson asked why the speed limit is 35 miles per hour on Thompson Street at the 
location being discussed and 25 miles per hour when it nears the area of the 7-11 store. 
 
Paige Christy – 619 Chapman Street. 
 
Ms. Christy stated that she was grateful for Mr. Priddy’s desire to restore the old store 
and to donate the land to the Town for a park. 
 
Ms. Christy spoke in opposition of the rezoning with concerns of the traffic, potential 
lighting, and the potential future businesses in a residential area. 
 
Ms. Christy suggested that if the rezoning should be approved, it be set up so that if the 
property is sold or changes use, that it could only be designated as a medical office or 
attorney’s office or some sort of business office rather than a commercial retail site to be 
in keeping with the surrounding area of nursing home, adult living and doctors offices. 
 
David Gilmore – 107 Chapman Street. 
 
Mr. Gilmore spoke in opposition of the rezoning stating that he was in agreement with 
everything that Ms. Tayloe Moore has stated. 
 
There being no further comment, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Flanagan asked Mr. Priddy if there was any thought given to providing a turn lane 
for his proposed business building. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that there was no room for a turning lane in that location. 
 
Mr. Flanagan asked how the crosswalks came about at this location.  
 



Planning Commission Minutes  
February 13, 2013 

8 
 

Ms. Amos stated that the Public Works Department suggested the crosswalks in that 
location for both the business and the future park area that will be in that location; and 
that staff has researched some flashing light signs with the push button to activate them 
to notify oncoming traffic that they should yield to pedestrians crossing the road. 
 
Mr. Flanagan expressed concerns for pedestrian traffic in that location with the speed of 
vehicles in that area, and with the knowledge that Hanover County desires to eventually 
convert U.S. Route 54 (Thompson Street) from two (2) lanes to four (4) lanes.   
 
Mr. Flanagan asked Mr. Priddy why the area to be rezoned to B-1 was so large.   
 
Mr. Priddy stated that it was as he remembers the parcel to be when he was a child. 
 
Mr. Brown asked if it was possible to constrain the number and types of future uses 
along with the amount of parking and the hours. 
 
Ms. Erard stated that these constraints could be done through voluntary proffers from the 
applicant. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that if the Planning Commission had any recommendations then staff 
could meet with the Applicant and his representative and discuss them. 
  
Ms. Amos stated that with regards to Mr. Peterson’s inquiry of the speed limit, she and 
Mr. Phillips do not have any historical information data on when that speed limit went 
into effect but as one gets closer to the downtown area there is more pedestrian activity 
along with the railroad crossings, and a more dense housing corridor in the business 
district. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that the speed limit could be lowered to 25 miles per hour, but there has 
been no discussion regarding this matter.      
 
There was a general consensus of the Planning Commission that they like the idea of 
what Mr. Priddy would like to do and the idea of the nature park being proposed; 
however, they also would like to consider the desires of the residents of the 
neighborhood. 
 
Ms. Jewell stated that in order to make an educated decision, she would like to see more 
information regarding what the development would be and to have proffers offered. 
 
Mr. Hugh Campbell, Attorney, 113 Hanover Avenue, Ashland, Virginia. 
 
Mr. Campbell stated that he helped Mr. Priddy file his application.  Mr. Campbell stated 
that it would be better for Mr. Priddy to step back and address some of the concerns that 
have been mentioned.   
 
Mr. Campbell stated Mr. Priddy is trying to balance a philanthropic interest in the gifting 
of land to the Town of Ashland and preserving the northwest corridor which has been in 



Planning Commission Minutes  
February 13, 2013 

9 
 

blight for a long time, and his investment which he needs to recoup by having something 
commercial in that location to lease.  Mr. Campbell stated that Mr. Priddy would like to 
redevelop the store; however, he is not certain how, but in all of the meetings that have 
taken place with Mr. Phillips regarding the development of the parking lot, Mr. Priddy is 
maxed out on what can be cleared on that parcel without getting into mediation issues 
associated with the Chesapeake Bay Act. 
 
Mr. Campbell stated he has heard what the public has had to say and he respects their 
opinions and the fact that they do not want to have parking lights; and those concerns 
can be addressed in some proffers.  Mr. Campbell stated that at Mr. Priddy’s age he does 
not want to gift a bunch of property to the Town of Ashland and try to preserve an 
economic interest where there are no opportunities for the unknown. 
 
Mr. Campbell stated that one area that had not been mentioned was that there are several 
unopened roads in that location that probably serves the Town to get those issues 
resolved in this park setting.  
 
Mr. Priddy indicated to the Planning Commission that he would like to have the 
rezoning request be deferred to allow time for him to work with staff on proffers. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Brown to defer REZ13-0107 – Sumpter T. Priddy, Jr. to the 
March 13, 2013, Planning Commission meeting. 
 

 ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Stevens  Aye 
Ms. Jewell  Aye 
Mr. Flanagan  Aye  
Mr. Brown  Aye 
Mr. Abbott  Aye 
 
With all Ayes, the motion passed to defer the rezoning request to the March 13, 2013, meeting. 

 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 

A. SUB12-0921 – Sumpter T. Priddy, Sr. & Cornelia W. – Subdivision Preliminary 
Plat – Bryant Phillips 

 
Mr. Phillips reviewed the subdivision plat as presented in the Planning Commission packet. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that there are 13 existing parcels to be subdivided into two (2) lots.  All 
existing property lines and unimproved right-of-ways would be vacated. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that the proposed lot one (1) is approximately 3.578 acres which includes the 
vacant store building located on the subject property to be rezoned to B-1 per REZ13-0107 for 
future commercial use. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes  
February 13, 2013 

10 
 

Mr. Phillips stated that lot two (2) is approximately 11.106 acres which is to be placed under a 
permanent conservation easement and would be dedicated to the Town of Ashland for use as a 
park and or open space. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that in conjunction with the subdivision request; the Applicant is requesting 
an exception to the sidewalks, curb, and gutter which are required per Sec. 17-49.2 of the 
Subdivision Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that this request appears to satisfy conditions one (1) and three (3) but does 
not satisfy condition number two (2) for an exception of Sec. 17-49.2. 
  
Mr. Phillips stated that staff recommends approval of the preliminary plat dated January 29, 
2013. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that with regards to the exception to the sidewalk, curb, and gutter request, 
staff is recommending approval of the exception request, even though not all of the conditions 
of Sec. 17-49.2 have been met for the request along Thompson Street. 

• Staff believes the reasons for not providing sidewalk, curb, and gutter outweigh the 
reasons for providing them. 

• A pedestrian path would still provide pedestrian access. 
 
Mr. Flanagan stated that this issue came up once before regarding an exception to sidewalks in 
the case of The Vitamin Shoppe and whether it met all of the guidelines and that was part of the 
reason that he voted the way that he did because it appeared as though the Applicant was 
required to meet all three (3) exceptions. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that Mr. Flanagan was correct and those were under the site plan section which 
are different than the requirements for a subdivision, and staff was not saying that the Applicant 
should not have any sidewalks.  It is staff’s feeling that in this situation, due to the engineering 
concerns, which are completely different than the other request that was being referenced just a 
moment ago, this would be a different version of a sidewalk. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that legally the Planning Commission could have suggested the Applicant 
provide a trail in place of the sidewalk in The Vitamin Shoppe Site Plan. 
  
Ms. Erard concurred with Ms. Amos. 
 
Ms. Jewell asked what the definition of a pedestrian path would be. 
 
Mr. Phillips stated that there is no official definition of a pedestrian path; however, in this 
particular case it would be a mulch type trail, because one could not have a paved trail without 
disturbing the wetlands which was one of the main engineering concerns relating to sidewalk 
construction.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Flanagan to defer SUB12-0921 – Sumpter T. Priddy, Sr. & Cornelia 
W. Subdivision Preliminary Plat until the March 13, 2013, Planning Commission meeting.  
 



Planning Commission Minutes  
February 13, 2013 

11 
 

ROLL CALL: 
 
Mr. Flanagan  Aye  
Mr. Brown  Aye 
Mr. Stevens  Aye 
Ms. Jewell  Aye 
Mr. Abbott  Aye 
 
With all Ayes, the motion passed to defer the Subdivision Preliminary Plat request to the March 
13, 2013, meeting. 
 
REPORT OF COMMITTEES: 
 
Town Council – George Spagna 
 
Dr. Spagna stated that the recent Town Council Actions are listed in the Planning Commission 
packet. 
 
Ashland Main Street Association – Nora Amos 
 
Ms. Amos stated that Ms. Thompson did an excellent job of bringing the Planning Commission 
up to date regarding Ashland Main Street Association activities.  
 
Economic Development Authority –Nora Amos 
 
Ms. Amos stated that Ms. Thompson did an excellent job of bringing the Planning Commission 
up to date regarding Economic Development Authority activities.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 

A. None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A. None. 
 
UPCOMING ITEMS: 
 

A. REZ13-0129 – Concrete Pipe and Precast – Rezoning 
 
Ms. Amos stated that staff would send information for the Concrete Pipe and Precast rezoning 
request out to the Planning Commission and that they may wish to visit the site. 
 
Ms. Amos stated that Ms. Quesenberry will send out some possible dates for a February work 
session. 
  



Planning Commission Minutes  
February 13, 2013 

12 
 

ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m. 


	Call to order:
	T o w n   o f   A s h l a n d
	Call to order:
	Roll Call:
	Determination of Quorum:
	T o w n   o f   A s h l a n d
	Citizen Input:
	PRESENTATION
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	Roll Call:
	Roll Call:
	REPORT OF COMMITTEES:
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
	NEW BUSINESS:
	UPCOMING ITEMS:
	ADJOURNMENT:



